EERR=R

BALANCE SHEET

(IRIR T B & 51 E R A2
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

BE &tk BAaF
ASSETS Consolidated Parent company
2003%12A 318 2002124310 2003%12A31A 20024128318
AT END AT BEGINNING AT END AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR OF YEAR OF YEAR OF YEAR
fifzt ARET ARET ARBT ARET
NOTES RMB RMB RMB RMB
ROEE CURRENT ASSETS
ERES Monetary Fund 5 413,986,014.30 503,467,118.60 399,368,092.85 495,429,329.13
EHRE Short-term investments 6 31,177,842.00 — 31,177,842.00 -
eSS Notes receivable 7 40,950,704.97 13,256,368.20 40,950,704.97 13,256,368.20
IR Dividend receivable - — - —
RIS Interest receiveble - — - —
FEMIE Accounts receivable 8 259,673,380.86 252,888,637.49 259,623,380.86 252,888,637.49
AR Other receivables 9 104,258,510.22 117,596,866.22 105,353,651.38 116,167,668.67
LS Accounts Prepaid 10 4,157,098.07 3,401,774.74 4,147,040.78 3,162,474.52
FE Inventories 11 250,537,957.72 218,634,068.33 244,114,271.13 213,030,993.62
HEBR Deferred and prepaid expenses - — - —
—ERNIHMHE  Long-term debt investment due
HERRE within a year - — - _
L RBEE Other current assets - — — _
mEEESH Total current assets 1,104,741,508.14 1,109,244,833.58 1,084,734,983.97 1,093,925,471.63
RURE LONG-TERM INVESTMETS
RERERE Long-term equity investment 12 80,108,518.00 55,277,318.00 92,010,811.77 63,208,974.89
RHBEERE Long-term debt investment 12 75,500.00 75,500.00 75,500.00 75,500.00
RHREak Total long-term investmets 80,184,018.00 55,352,818.00 92,086,311.77 63,284,474.89
BEEE : FIXED ASSETS
BEaERE Fixed assets - cost 18 1,352,596,074.87 1,085,199,625.04 1,350,370,160.86 1,084,485,074.04
W RitiE Less: accumulated depreciation 13 653,386,788.34 585,157,010.10 653,008,602.18 584,956,320.84
Ehay Fixed assets net 13 699,209,286.53 500,042,614.94 697,361,558.68 499,528,753.20
B ETEER  Less: Provision for impainment 13
EEE fixed assets - — - —
BEdEFa Fixed assets net 13 699,209,286.53 500,042,614.94 697,361,558.68 499,528,753.20
IENE Construction materials 10,206,048.73 8,558,149.83 10,206,048.73 8,558,149.83
EEIRE Construction-in-progress 14 120,597,120.29 154,740,709.72 120,597,120.29 154,740,709.72
BE&ERT Total fixed assets 830,012,455.55 663,341,474.49 828,164,727.70 662,827,612.75
EVEERHEMEE . INTANGIBLE ASSESTS AND
OTHER ASSETS
BVEE Intangible assets 15 70,442,662.78 68,331,382.56 70,442,662.78 68,331,382.56
REAGEER Long-term prepayments - — - —
EnRHEE Other long-term assets - — — —
BREER Total intangible assets
HEtEERH: and other assets 70,442,662.78 68,331,382.56 70,442,662.78 68,331,382.56
EBERE : DEFERED TAX
BEEHNEE Defered tax debit - — - _
FEAH TOTAL ASSETS 2,085,380,644.47 1,896,270,508.63 2,075,428,686.22 1,888,368,941.83
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BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(IR F B & 5t ERI AR
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

AEMRRES A BAH
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL Consolidated Parent company
2003F12R 318 20025128318 2003F12A 310 2002124318
AT END AT BEGINNING ATEND AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR OF YEAR OF YEAR OF YEAR
Mz ARET ARBTT ARET AR
NOTES RMB RMB RMB RMB
RHAR: CURRENT LIABILITES
RHET Short-term loans 16 174,156,000.00 140,000,000.00 174,156,000.00 140,000,000.00
ENEE Notes payable 17 92,199,948.18 6,800,000.00 92,199,948.18 6,800,000.00
IR Accounts payable 18 145,346,593.63 110,077,846.60 140,368,400.07 104,682,406.00
ELGEN Deposits from customers 19 8,541,346.03 6,794,110.56 8,541,346.03 6,649,110.56
ERTE Accrued payroll - — - —
—FREIHN Long term liabilities
ElIEHE Welfare & benefit payable 12,789,206.44 9,832,743.40 12,789,206.44 9,832,743.40
FEfTRRF Dividends payable 20 5,795,059.07 5,135,547.70 5,795,059.07 5,135,547.70
EXHe Taxes payable 21 (19,525,415.51) (22,029,554.22) (19,201,318.56) (21,331,654.46)
EERH Other payments - — - —
Hi R Other payables 22 37,941,290.89 32,499,211.31 37,355,557.15 32,116,375.97
BRER Accrued expenses 23 7,302,547.67 3,000,000.00 7,302,547.67 3,000,000.00
BT AR Estimated liabilities - — - —
ank kil Long term liabilities
REERE due wintin one year 24 - 200,000,000.00 — 200,000,000.00
EEBas Other current liabilities - — — _
THARSE Total current liabilities 464,546,576.40 492,109,905.35 459,306,746.05 486,884,529.17
RIAR: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
RHER Long-term borrowings 25 200,000,000.00 — 200,000,000.00 —
EfES Bonds payable - — - —
REBENE Long-term payable - — - —
EnREERE Other long-term liabilties 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
REARSE Total long term liabilities 203,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 203,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
EERE DEFERED TAX
ERHTER Defered tax credit - — — _
ffRes Total liabilities 668,108,076.40 495,671,405.35 662,868,246.05 490,446,029.17
PHBRESR MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY
DERFER Minority Shareholders’ Equity 26 3,968,071.03 2,676,190.62 - —
BRRER: SHARE CAPITAL EQUITY
A Share capital 27 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00
BELE Capital surplus 28 558,919,077.15 558,919,077.15 558,919,077.15 558,919,077.15
BHLE Surplus reserve 29 159,424,924.74 148,905,850.41 159,216,915.99 148,697,841.66
E AEREE  Including: welfare fund 29 26,291,986.91 24,188,172.04 26,222,650.66 24,118,835.79
FARFH Undistributed profit 30 236,903,608.28 232,785,155.10 237,111,617.03 232,993,163.85
A BAE®  Including: Dividend in cash to
B be distributed 18,292,513.20 27,438,769.80 18,292,513.20 27,438,769.80
DERRINEEE  Foreign currency statement
translation difference 31 744,056.87 - - -
BRESSH Total share capital equity 1,413,304,497.04 1,397,922,912.66 1,412,560,440.17  1,397,922,912.66
AEMBRESME  Total liabilities &

stockholders equity

2,085,380,644.47

1,896,270,508.63

2,075,428,686.22

1,888,368,941.83
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R RMESBE R
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

(IRIR T B & 51 E R A2
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

%A At NG
Items Consolidated Parent company
2003 & 2002F 5 2003 2002 [
CURRENT YEAR LASTYEAR  CURRENT YEAR LAST YEAR
CUMULATIVE CUMULATIVE CUMULATIVE CUMULATIVE
fifzt ARET ARET AR ARET
NOTES RMB RVB RMB RMB
— EEEHKKA  Revenue from main operations 32  1,328,471,339.17  1,173,549,986.46  1,308,531,616.75  1,157,258,610.49
B TEEBAK Less: Costof main operations 32 1,027,612,757.59 858,629,236.45  1,014,477,760.60 847,023,403.90
FREBHS Tax and surcharges for
RFtm main operations 33 8,227,711.08 3,188,801.11 7,988,780.34 3,013,539.28
Z. EEEEHE  Sales gross profit 292,630,870.50 311,731,948.90 286,065,075.81 307,221,667.31
M EEREFE Add: Profix on other operations 34 2,097,171.76 3,964,914.86 2,097,171.76 3,964,914.86
W &¥EB  Less: Operating expenses 114,267,814.51 117,542,021 .44 109,427,631.22 114,312,755.74
EEBA General and administrative
expenses 118,939,059.74 110,616,233.88 116,561,368.44 109,887,607.06
YHER Financial expenses 35 10,284,625.24 2,491,471.70 10,321,861.66 2,516,914.00
=, BETR Operating profit 51,236,542.77 85,047,136.74 51,851,386.25 84,469,305.37
m:HEKE  Add: Investment income 36 780,806.43 816,320.00 154,644.75 1,183,107.23
1 ON Revenue from subsidies 37 339,588.79 - 339,588.79 -
BEMIA Non-operating income 38 2,819,091.68 2,678,022.70 2,819,091.68 2,678,022.70
B BEASH  Less: Non-operating expenses 39 4,804,772.06 7,161,890.37 4,797,589.89 7,161,774.97
. fB8E Profit before income tax 50,371,257.61 81,379,589.07 50,367,121.58 81,168,660.33
W SR Less: Income tax 8,382,119.46 12,558,924.07 8,290,824.27 12,404,399.34
DEREER Minority profit (87,159.16) 56,404.01 - -
I BN Profit after tax 42,076,297.31 68,764,260.99 42,076,297.31 68,764,260.99
e EMFHE  Add: Undistributed profit at
il)i beg. of the year 232,785,155.10 217,838,817.07 232,993,163.85 218,004,994.51
N THRAEMFAE  Profit available for the year 274,861,452.41 286,603,078.06 275,069,461.16 286,769,255.50
B REVEER  Less: Appropriation of
NI statutory surplus reserve 4,207,629.73 6,904,313.64 4,207,629.73 6,876,426.10
RIVERE Appropriation of
N statutory welfare fund 2,103,814.87 3,452,156.82 2,103,814.87 3,438,213.05
. THERSEFE Undistributed profit available
for the year 268,550,007.81 276,246,607.60 268,758,016.56 276,454,616.35
B REUIEER  Less: Appropriation of discretionary
NI surplus reserve 4,207,629.73 6,876,426.10 4,207,629.73 6,876,426.10
JEL@IAET  General dividend payable 27,438,769.80 36,585,026.40 27,438,769.80 36,585,026.40
N ®3EFE Undistributed profit at the end
of the year 236,903,608.28 232,785,155.10 237,111,617.03 232,993,163.85
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION (continued)

(IR F B & 5t ERI AR
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EH & B4
ltems Consolidated Parent company
2003F [ 20025 % 2003F 20025
CURRENT YEAR LAST YEAR CURRENT YEAR LAST YEAR
CUMULATIVE CUMULATIVE CUMULATIVE CUMULATIVE
ARBT ARET AR¥T ARETT
RMB RMB RMB RMB
MARER
ANNOTATIONS
1. HE - RERFISHK
WEBMERES
Income from selling/disposing departments
or companies that received investment — — — —
2. BAKEHEHMNEX
Loss from natural disaster — — — —
3. SEHEREEEM (FORD)
bR
Increase (decrease) of the total profit
due to changes of accounting policy — — — —
4, Gt EEE M (SUR D) FRRE
Increase (decrease) of the total profit
due to changes of accounting estimation 1,193,054.67 — 1,193,054.67 —
5. B EMRL
Loss from recombining of debts — — — —
B. A
Others — — — —
132 LR E BB H R A R
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(IRIR T B & 51 E R A2
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EH 20035 E
[TEMS CURRENT YEAR CUMULATIVE
a2ty BAH
Consolidated Parent company
i3 AR®T ARBT
NOTES RMB RMB
- REEDELNASRE: CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
HERR  RUABWIMES  Cash received from sales of goods or rendering of services 1,036,015,156.76 1,013,446,718.66
RENHERE Refund of taxes and levies 22,539,020.79 22,539,020.79
WEIMERELLEHEENRE  Cash received from other operating activities 9,847,817.25 9,799,834.76
BRamAD SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS 1,068,401,994.80 1,045,785,574.21
BEAR BXSBIAMNES  Cash paid for goods and services 651,068,179.77 637,141,280.35
TRABTHIRABTISHMEE  Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 121,382,232.12 119,673,393.82
IAMEERE Taxes paid 35,611,272.82 34,975,014.12
TRNECELLEHEBNRS  Cash paid relating to other operating activities 40 129,022,081.14 124,049,256.96
ReRH Mt SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS 937,083,765.85 915,838,945.25
BEZDELMRERESH NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 131,318,228.95 129,946,628.96
Z. REEDELNASRE: CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Ebe-E ok Cash received from retum of investment — —
PERENEMIEIMNAS Cash recelved from distribution of investment profit 780,806.43 780,806.43
REETEE EFMEENEM  Netcashreceived from disposal of fixed assets,

REEEMUERBELFE intangible assets and other long-term assets 1,470,546.00 1,470,546.00
WEIMEREREZDHEBNES  Other cash received relating to investing activities - -
RERA D SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS 2,251,352.43 2,251 352.43
BRETEE  BVEAEN Cash paid to acquire fixed assets,

AHEHEEMSANES intangible assets and other long-term assets 184,048,732.32 182,537,369.31
REMYANAS Cash paid to investment 56,009,042.00 60,605,840.56
TRHMAMEREEHEENBES  Other cash paid relating to investing activities - —
ReRH Mt SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS 240,057,774.32 243,143,209.87
REEHEENRGNERE NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (237,806,421.89) (240,891,857.44)

S REGDELNRLRE: CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

RUEREREMREINRE Proceeds from issing shares and issuing bonds 1,379,039.57 —
Edhc FREMUDEBERER  Including: cash recelved by the subsidiaries by absorbing

ERERINERS the minorities' equity investment 1,379,039.57 -
Ep ek Proceeds from borrowings 494,156,000.00 494,156,000.00
REMEREEEZHEBENAES  Cash received from other financing activities 8,598,466.84 8,598,466.84
RERA D SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS 504,133,506.41 502,754,466.84
BEEBMIANERS Repayment of borrowings 460,000,000.00 460,000,000.00
AERH - FEANERHS Distribution of dividends or

FxfinBRe profits and interest expenses 27,809,040.64 27,809,040.64
TRMAMESEEHERNTS  Payment of expenses on financing activities - —
B SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS 487,809,040.64 487,809,040.64
EGIDELMRERERH NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 16,324,465.77 14,945,426.20

N ExgBHRenyE EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH 682,622.87 (61,434.00)
I ReRASERMIENE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (89,481,104.30) (96,061,236.28)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (continued)

(IR F B & 5t ERI AR
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

BanERATEH
ANNOTATIONS
HA 2003% K
ITEMS CURRENT YEAR CUMULATIVE
a8 BAA
Consolidated Parent company
btz ARET ARET
NOTES RMB RMB
1. RIARHAREIDN RECONCILIATION OF NET PROFIT TO CASH FLOWS FROM
RenE: OPERATING ACTIVITIES
EHE Net profit 42,076,297.31 42,076,297.31
m: SEREES Add: Minority profit (87,159.16) —
SRNAERKER Provisions for impairment of assets 13,116,011.75 18,116,011.75
EE4ERE Depreciation of fixed assets 77,464,631.13 77,287,134.23
BYEESH Amortization of intangible assets 2,745,235.78 2,745,235.78
REETAE  BVAEA Loss / (gain) on disposal of fixed assets intanglble
EtRBEENBL(IUE) assets and other long-term assets (1,722,411.51) (1,722,411.51)
ETEEREEL Loss on fixed assets written off - -
HHER Financial expenses 10,284,625.24 10,321,861.66
REBL(R M) Loss / (gain) arising from investments (780,806.43) (154,644.75)
BRERFEBER.EE) Deferred tax credits (or deduct: debit) - -
FENRD(RLM) Decrease / (increase) in inventories (31,824,708.73) (31,004,096.85)
)i

@EEYIBR R Decrease / (increase) in receivables
BEEENBRBEMERD) Increase / (decrease) in payables
Efh Others

GETDELNRERNERE NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2 FERALKIMEENEEED : Investing and financing activities that do not

involve cash receipts and payments

EREBER Conversion of debt into capital
—FRIBNTERRAES Convertible bonds expiring within one year
HEARAETEE Fixed assets under finance lease

3. HERTBESEMSEAMER: NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ERESNEARE Cash at end of the period
B ERESRNETSE Less: cash at beginning of the period
BEZEMNERRE Add: cash equivalents at end of the period
B RESENNANRE Less: cash equivalents at beginning of the period
ReRRESERENBEME NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

199,410,029.09)
119,456,542.66

131,318,228.95

413,986,014.30
508,467,118.60

(89,481,104.30)

(101,454,498.16)
118,735,739.50

129,946,628.96

399,368,092.85
495,429,329.13

(96,061,236.28)
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BEREEMBAEE (SH)
STATEMENT OF PROVISION FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2003 (Consolidated) .

B E RE®/WUA M@K
STATEMENT OF PROVISION

(IRIR T B & 51 E R A2
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

200212318 FHEMK FHEmH SHIEHE 2003%F12A 318
Addition for ~ Reversal for
31 DEC.2002  currentyear  current year Transferred out 31 DEC.2003
EH ARET ARET ARET ARBT ARET
Items RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
- BEREREH Provision for bad debts 14,078,626.74  13,195,192.41 418,368.72  10,680,468.73  17,011,719.14
o EUWER Including : Account Receivable 12,565,517.97  13,354,840.46 418,368.72  10,680,468.73  15,658,258.42
AW Other Receivable 1513,108.77  (159,648.05) - —  1,353,460.72
Z. GHREBBEEMBSH Provision for loss on short-term
investment — - — - —
A RERE Including : Stock investment — - — — —
EHRE Bond investment — — — _ _
= FEBREERAH Provision for loss on realisation
of inventories 2,464,069.29 (79,180.66) — — 2,384,888.63
v EREM Including = Goods on hand 2,464,069.29 (79,180.66) - —  2,384,888.63
BB Raw materials — - — — —
m. REKEREEBSH Provision for impairment on long-term
investment — - — - —
Heb o RERERE  Including : Investment in equity — — — — —
ROEERE Investment in bonds — — — _ _
L. BEEEEREEHSE Provision for loss of fixed assets — — - — —
Heb o EEBEY  Including : Plant & building — — — — -
HRRE Equipment — — — - -
N EVEEREER Provision for impairment of intangible
assets — — — — —
B Including : Patents — - — - -
TR Proprietary technology - — — — —
t. ERIBREER Provision for impairment of construction
in progress - - — — —
N BRERAEEER Provision for impairment of
designated loan receivable — — — — —
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1 35
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BEERMEZMRBA@EAR

STATEMENT OF PROVISION (continued)

(RIZH B & 5 E R R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

BREREEMAEER (BAF)
STATEMENT OF PROVISION FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2003 (Parent company) .

2002%:12R31R FHamy FHBEH FHEHYE 2003F12A318
31 DEC.2002 Addition Disposal Transferred out 31 DEC.2003
5H ARBT ARBT ARBT ARBT ARBT
Items RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
- BEEREH Provision for bad debts 14,078,626.74  13,195,192.41 418,368.72  10,680,468.73  17,011,719.14
o BYRR Including : Account Receivable 12,565,517.97  13,354,840.46 418,368.72  10,680,468.73  15,658,258.42
Efufelan Other Receivable 1,513,108.77 (159,648.05) — —  1,353,460.72
Z. EHREBEEBA Provision for loss on short-term

investment - — - — —
A RERE Including : Stock investments — - — - —
EHRE Bond investments — — — — —

=, FEBRERSH Provision for loss on realisation of
inventories 2,464,069.29 (79,180.66) - —  2,384,888.63
A BEREM Including : Goods on hand 2,464,069.29 (79,180.66) — —  2,384,888.63

RHH
. RAREREERS T

o REBRERE
RHEERE

i EEREREERESH

Ef: FE-BED
HERE

N BEREREER

HE o ZR)E
ARk

t. ERIEREZR

N BREREEER

Raw materials —

Provision for loss on long-term
investment -
Including : Long-term equity investment —
Long-term debit investment —

Total amounts provided for
impairment of fixed assets —
Including : Plant & building -
Equipment -

Provision for impairment of
intangible assets —
Including : Patents —
Proprietary technology -

Provision for impairment of
construction in progress -

Provision for impairment of
designated loan receivable —

LB B AR A
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IR ER R H AR A A (THE
[ 2R)])FE19934F /A LU R FT R
BER R H] SRS - 1996FF 12 AN A T
BB B ETH - AREITHEA
RAMBIHAZAE SR - 1997F7 AR A
BRI A ETH - AREEITHRE
AR EFMBIARAE - 19984118
gE \RAMBEHINE ZEES
TERHLIETR - BAINEIRERMDE
PBRAE] o 2001459 B 4 HE#E 18 BEARR
EimAREES, 0008 0% - RFRFRE
B 3008 °

HZE2003F12A31H * A ARG
MERAEAREAS731ETT » A
EEET

ERRHRERERE
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

(RAFEG B ETHEINAARE T RBER)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(IRIR T B & 51 E R A5 2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Basic Background

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the
"Company") was established in 1993 as the result of the
reorganization of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory.
The Company issued its H Shares of the People's Republic of
China (the "PRC") on Hong Kong Security Exchange in
December 1996 and listed it's A Shares of the PRC on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in July 1997. The Company became
a foreign invested joint stock limited company in November 1998
upon approval by the Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic
Cooperation of the PRC. The Company issued additional 30
million ordinary A shares as approved and decreased 3 million
state shares in September 2001.

The registered capital of the Company as at 31 December 2003
was RMB457.31 million and its share capital for the year ended
as of 31 December 2003 consists of the following:

B8 e BEFE&E i 4]
Number of shares

outstanding Amount Percentage

ENd State shares 214,440 214,440 46.89%
MHEEAR Legal-person shares 16,720 16,720 3.66%
e RRHR Publicly-held H shares 150,000 150,000 32.80%
HERARAR Publicly-held A shares 76,153 76,153 16.65%
&&F Total 457,313 457,313 100%

ARBEENEME - BUEMKEE
LERHE  RER(CTER -

BELREANERTEERSE
(2001) A7 XX FHBAL + AN A
WHER BRI M -

ARBFEMMEEILREEETH S
EMEXAZER(CTRER -

The Company is mainly engaged in developing, manufacturing
and selling bulk pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemicals
products.

According to the Circular of "Lu Ke Gao Zi (2001) No. 647"
issued by Shandong Science & Technology Bureau, the
Company has been recognized as a new high-tech company.

The Company's place of registration is Zibo New High-tech
Industrial Development Zone's Chemicals Area, Shandong
Province.
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i B o)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

B REEESE

2.

138

2.1

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

FE

3.1

3.2

3.3

ARBREFEPEARLME
M EEMA (XA
ADMCEE S HIE) HARE
mHlEETHRE -

B g MEREHIITE

AHBEHRERR AL
ABRARERBELES
FORMEE A BIEE0% A L
87T R50%A A B
SRR ERE  BAA
P R O -
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2.

Basis of Preparation of Financial
Statements

2.1

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

Financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
and the Accounting Regulations for Joint Stock
Companies promulgated by the Ministry of Finance.

Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements comprise financial
accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries of which
the Company holds 50% or morn of the voting capital,
or less than 50% of the voting capital, but has significant
influence over them.

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Provisional Regulations on
Consolidated Financial Statements and relevant
supplementary regulations issued by MOF. All significant
transactions and balances between the Company and
its subsidiaries are eliminated for the purpose of
consolidation. (See Section 4 'Holding Subsidiaries and
Associates')

Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate

3.1

3.2

3.3

Accounting period

The accounting period of the Company is from 1 January
to 31 December of the Gregorian calendar year.

Principles of Accounting and basis of valuation

Financial statements have been prepared on an accrual
basis and all the assets are stated at historical cost
unless otherwise indicated.

Booking base currency

The Company uses RMB as its booking base currency.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(R AL 5 B it & INAN R BT T 5 8 )

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

(RFEFE S ERHR)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.4

3.5

3.6

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions for the year are translated
into RMB at the rate of exchange quoted by the People's
Bank of China on the first day of the month in which the
transactions occurred. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated into RMB at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are included in the results
of operations.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term (referring usually to
those due within three months from the purchasing date),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Short-term investments

3.6.1 Short-term investments are recorded at cost on
acquisition. The cost of a short-term investment
acquired in cash is determined based on the total
amount paid after deductions of cash dividends
that are declared but not received and interest
on bonds. The cost of a short-term investment
made by investors is determined based on the
amount as agreed by all the investors concerned.
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Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.6

3.7

Short-term investment (continued)

3.6.2

3.6.3

Dividends and interest on short-term investments
during the holding period are netted off against
the cost of the investments when received and
not recognized as investment income. Proceeds
from sale of short-term investments netted off
against their book value and dividend and interest
accrued but not received are recorded as
investment income or loss for the period.

Short-term investments are stated at the lower
of cost or market value at the end of the
accounting period. A provision for short-term
investment write-down is made on any difference
between the cost and lower market value at the
end of the period on the basis of a single item.

Accounting for bad debts loss

3.7.1

Bad debts are recognized and accounted for
when: (a) the debtor has been disbanded or has
gone bankrupt or becomes insolvent or is badly
in short of cash flows, or occurrence of a severe
natural disaster causes the debtor to cease
production and therefore cannot repay its debt
in the foreseeable future; (b) the debtor has not
repaid its debt overdue 3 years; and (c) there is
other absolute proof that the debts cannot be
recovered or are least likely to be recovered.
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allowance method. Provision for bad debts is
made on the aging analysis basis at the end of
the period. Accounts receivables that cannot be
recovered has been written off as bad debts loss
after approval at the board of directors' or
stockholders' meeting.

Provision for bad debts on accounts receivable
is made as follows:

Aging of accounts Ratio
Within 1 year 0.5%
Between 1-2 years 20%
Between 2-3 years 60%
Over 3 years 100%

Provision for other receivables (other than current
accounts with related parties) is made in the same
way as for accounts receivables. Provision for
special receivables is made after assessment of
their recoverability is carried out.
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Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.8

Inventories

Inventories comprise mainly raw materials, work-in-

process, finished products, goods in stock, low-valued

consumables and packaging materials.

3.8.1

3.8.2

3.8.3

3.8.4

The cost of raw materials includes the purchasing
price, plus transportation, loading and unloading
and insurance expenses. The cost of self-made
semi-products and finished products include
various expenditures that actually incur during
production.

Issuance and sale of raw materials, self-made
semi-products and finished products are
accounted for on a weighted-average basis.

Low-valued consumables and packaging
materials are charged as cost when issued.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market value at the end of the period. Where the
cost of inventories is higher than their recoverable
amount because they are damaged, completely
or partially obsolescent, or with a selling price
lower than the cost, a provision for inventory
write-down is made after a thorough examination
of inventories at the end of the period. The
provision is made on the difference between the
cost of inventory items and their lower net
realizable value on a single item basis. Net
realizable value refers to the amount of an
estimated selling price less the estimated costs
of completion and estimated selling expenses and
taxes.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

(RFEFE S ERHR)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Principal

Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.9 Long-term investments

Long-

term investments include long-term equity

investments and long-term debt investments.

3.9.1

3.9.1.1

3.9.1.2

Long-term equity investments

The initial cost of long-term equity investments
is the total amount paid or evaluated on
acquisition. The Company applies the cost
method for long-term investments where it holds
less than 20% of the voting capital of the invested
company, or it holds 20% or more but does not
have significant influence over the company and
applies the equity method where it holds 20% or
more of the voting capital of the invested
company, or it holds less than 20% but has
significant control over the invested company.

The difference between the initial investment cost
and the Company's share of owners' equity of
the invested company is treated as equity
investment difference and amortized over a
defined period. If the investment period is
specified in the contract, the difference is
amortized evenly over the period. If the
investment period is not specified in the contract,
the debit difference is amortized evenly over a
period of less than 10 years and the credit
difference over a period of no less than 10 years.
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Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.9

Long-term investments (continued)

3.9.2

Long-term debt investments

3.9.2.1 The initial cost of long-term debt investment is

the total amount paid on acquisition. The initial
cost of long-term debt investment acquired in
cash is the total amount paid less interest on
bonds not received. Interest on bonds is accrued
and included in investment income on the accrual
basis.

3.9.2.2 The difference between the initial cost of a long-

3.9.3

term debt investment, as reduced by related
expenses and interest due but not received and
interest not due, and the par value of the bonds
is treated by the Company as premium or
discount on the investment. The premium or
discount is amortized on a straight-line method
over the periods in which the investment is held
when interest revenue on it is recognized.

For the recoverable amount of the investment that
is lower than its carrying amount as a result of a
continuing decline in market value or changes in
operating conditions of the invested company
and that cannot be recovered in the foreseeable
future, the Company makes a provision for long-
term impairment on the difference between the
recoverable amount and the carrying amount of
the investment.
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

(RFEFE S ERHR)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Principal

Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.10 Fixed

3.10.1.2

assets and construction-in-progress

Fixed assets

Fixed assets include buildings and structures,
machinery equipment, and transportation
equipment. Fixed assets are assets with a useful
life over one year, such as buildings and
structures, and other major equipment used in
production, and those that are not major
equipment used in production but with a unit
value over RMB2,000 and useful live over 2 years.

Fixed assets are recorded at cost on acquisition.
The cost of fixed assets purchased include the
purchasing price, VAT, import duty, related
expenses and other expenditures necessary to
bring the fixed assets into their usable conditions.
Fixed assets invested by investors are recorded
at an amount as agreed by all the investors
concerned.
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Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.10 Fixed assets and construction-in-progress
(continued)

3.10.1.3 Fixed assets (excluding those fully depreciated)

are depreciated on a straight-line basis with the
estimated net residual value at zero. The
depreciable life and rate for different classes of
fixed assets are as follows:

T -

551 & F IR FinE®
Type of fixed assets Depreciable lives Annual depreciable rate
BEREEY 20%F / Years 5%
Buildings & constructions

W R 10%F / Years 10%
Machinery equipment

BFES 5% / Years 20%
Electronic apparatus

MARBIERTIA 5% / Years 20%

Office equipment and vehicles
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3.10.1.4 The Company makes a provision for impairment

on those fixed assets that are actually impaired
(e.g., because of excessive functions, longtime
inefficient capacity of utilization, significantly
decreased replacement value, yield of fixed
assets much lower than the normal yield of fund),
based on the difference between the lower
realizable value and the carrying amount of the
assets. A provision for impairment of the fixed
assets is made in full amount where the following
situations apply:

the market value of fixed assets has declined
significantly more than would be expected as a
result of the passage of time or normal use and it
is not expected that the declined will be recovered
in the near future;
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(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.10 Fixed assets and construction-in-progress
(continued)

@

(3)

3.10.2

3.10.2.1

fixed assets has become obsolete or physical
damage of the assets have occurred;

significant adverse changes with a negative effect
on the Company have taken place in the
expected usage of fixed assets, such as the
Company's plans to discontinue or restructure
the operation to which the fixed assets belong,
or to dispose of the fixed assets before the
originally expected dates;

significant changes with an adverse effect on the
Company have taken place or will take place in
the near future in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the
Company operates, or in the market to which the
products are dedicated;

market interest rates have increased significantly
in the period and the increases are likely to affect
the discount rate used in calculating the assets'
recoverable amount and therefore decrease the
fixed assets' recoverable amount materially;

other situations indicate that fixed assets may be
impaired.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction-in-progress is
determined according to expenditures that incur
actually. The cost of construction work
undertaken by the Company itself is determined
according to direct materials, direct labor and
direct construction expenses; the cost of
construction work undertaken by a third party is
determined according to amount paid to the
contractor; and the cost of equipment installation
construction is determined according to the cost
of equipment, installation charges and trial run
expenses.
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Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.10 Fixed assets and construction-in-progress

(continued)

3.10.2.2 The construction of an asset is transferred to the

fixed assets account on the date it reaches its
usable conditions at an estimated amount based
on the budget price, the amount paid to the
contractor and cost of work. The asset will be
depreciated from the month following that in
which it is put into use. The estimated value of
the asset and its accumulated depreciation is
adjusted for after the actual cost is ascertained.

3.10.2.3 The Company conducts a thorough inspection

of construction-in-progress at year-end and
makes a provision for impairment on any
difference between the lower recoverable amount
and the carrying amount of construction-in-
progress on the basis of different items when one
or some of the following situations exist:

construction-in-progress is suspended for quite
a long time and will not be resumed within 3
years;

construction-in-progress is out of date in terms
of function and technology, and there is great
uncertainty that it can bring economic benefit to
the Company;

other situations indicate that construction-in-
progress has been impaired.
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(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.11 Borrowing costs

3.1

3.11.2

Borrowing costs include interests incurred by the
Company in connection with the borrowings,
amortization of premium or discount relating to
the borrowings ancillary expenses, and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings. Other borrowing costs, except for
special borrowing costs incurred for the
acquisition or construction of a fixed asset is
charged directly as financial expenses in the
period in which they are incurred. Capitalization
of special borrowing costs incurred for acquisition
or construction of a fixed asset begins when the
following three conditions are fully satisfied:

expenditures for the asset are being incurred;
borrowing costs are being incurred;

acquisition and construction that are necessary
to enable the asset reach its expected usable
condition have been commenced.

The borrowing cost incurred on an asset being
acquired or constructed that satisfies the above
conditions is capitalized before the asset has
reached its expected usable condition and is
charged financial expenses for the period in which
they are incurred after the asset has reached its
expected usable condition.
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Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.12 Valuation and amortization of intangible assets

3.121

3.12.2

Intangible assets are recorded at the actual cost
on acquisition. Intangible assets purchased are
recorded at the amount actually paid; intangible
assets contributed by an investor are recorded
at an amount agreed by all the investors; and
intangible assets developed by the Company
itself and a legal right to which has been obtained,
such as a patent, are recorded at the amount
paid for registration fees and legal fees. Expenses
incurred during the process of research and
development such as materials, labor and others
are recorded as expenses for the period in which
they are incurred.

The cost of an intangible assets of the Company
is, starting from the month in which it is acquired,
amortized evenly over the amortization period,
which is no longer than the shortest of the
expected useful life, the beneficial period as
specified in the contract or the useful life specified
in the law, and is charged as gains or losses of
the period. The Company's intangible assets
include land use rights, patents, non-proprietary
technologies, trade marks, etc. The land use right
is amortized over an assigned period of 50 years,
the building use right is amortized over a
beneficial period of 20 years and the software
use right is over a beneficial period of 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(R AL 5 B it & INAN R BT T 5 8 )

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

(RFEFE S ERHR)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.12

3.13

3.14

Valuation and amortization of intangible assets
(continued)

3.123 The Company makes a provision for intangible
assets impairment on any difference between the
lower recoverable amount and the carrying
amount of the asset when one or some of the
following circumstances exist:

(1) the market value of an intangible assets has been
replaced by a new technology and its ability to
bring economic benefits to the Company has
been adversely affected;

2) the market value of an intangible asset declines
drastically during the period and it is not likely to
be recovered during the remaining amortization
periods;

3) an intangible assets whose legal protection period
expires but can still be used to certain extent;

(4) other circumstances indicate that the asset has
been actually impaired.

Recognition of revenue

The Company's operating revenues are mainly revenues
from sale of goods. Revenues are recognized when the
Company has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods, retains
neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold, has received or obtained the
evidence of receipt for related revenues, and the relevant
costs can be measured reliably.

Income Tax

The taxes payable method is applied by the Company
in accounting for income tax.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1 51
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Principal

Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.15 Taxes

Major taxes and tax rates applicable to the Company

are as

3.15.1

follows:

Income tax

The Company applies a 15% of income tax rate
starting from 2002 according to relevant tax
policies of the State Council on new high-tech
enterprises set up in development zones,
because the Company's place of registration is
Zibo New High-tech Industrial Development
Zone, Shandong Province.

Zibo Xinhua-Sanhe Chemical Company Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company, is subject to 15%
income tax and other subsidiaries are subject to
33% income tax.

Value added tax

The Company is subject to value added tax for
its sales revenues. VAT rate for domestic sales is
17% or 13% and the rate for export sales is 0%.

VAT input for raw materials purchased can be
netted off against VAT output, the tax rate being
17%.

VAT payable for the period is the amount of VAT
output after deductions of VAT input.

Urban maintenance & construction tax and
educational fees

Urban maintenance & construction tax and
educational fees are levied based on VAT payable
and business tax payable at the rates of 7% and
3% respectively.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR B AT HEINAARETF T B E L)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

(RFEFE S ERHR)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.15 Taxes (continued)

3.15.4  Property tax

Property tax is levied based on 70% of the original
cost of the property at a rate of 1.2%.

3.16 Changes in accounting policies and estimates

3.16.1

3.16.2

According to Circular No. 12 2003 of the Ministry
of Finance on the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises-Events after the Balance
Sheet Date, cash dividend distributed according
to the profit distribution proposal made by the
Board of Directors between the balance sheet
date and the date the financial reports are
approved and published, is listed as a separate
item of the owners' equity in the balance sheet.
The Company has made necessary adjustments
to the undistributed profit of RMB27,438,769.80
on 31 December 2002 and RMB36,585,026.40
31 December 2001 respectively, using the
retroactive adjustment method based on the
change of this accounting policy.

The Company's original depreciable life for fixed
assets were: 15 years for buildings and
structures, 10 years for plant and equipment, 10
years for electronic instruments, and 10 years for
office equipment and vehicles. According to the
actual usage of the fixed assets, the depreciable
life for buildings and structures has been changed
to 20 years, and that for electronic instruments
and office equipment and vehicles changed to 5
years. The Company has adopted the future
application method for this change in accounting
estimation. The effect of the change of this
accounting estimate on net profit for 2003 was
an increase of RMB1,014,096.47, using the
prospective application method.
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Principal Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimate (continued)

3.16 Changes in accounting policies and estimates.

(continued)
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3.16.3 According to the provisions of China Securities

Regulatory Commission's '‘Questions & Answers
on Information Disclosure by Public Companies-
Differences and Disclosures of Financial Reports
Prepared According to Chinese and Foreign
Accounting Standards Respectively' issued on 7
November 2001 (referred to as the 'File No. 60'),
the Company has made adjustments of
consistency to different rates used by
international CPAs in making the provision for bad
debts and the provision for inventory write-down
according to the international practices. The
original rate of provision for accounts receivables
were 0.5% for those due within 1 year, 10% for
those between 1 and 2 years, 20% for those
between 2 and 3 years, and 100% for those
overdue three years, which are changed as
follows: 0.5% for those due within 1 year, 20%
for those between 1 and 2 years, 60% for those
between 2 and 3 years, and 100% for those
overdue 3 years. The provision for inventory write-
down is an increase of RMB2,143,000. The
Company's adjustments to the above items using
the retrospective method caused a decrease of
RMB9,185,708 in the undistributed profit for
2001 on the date File No. 60 becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(R FFERR 5 H it B & SNAN R TF T /3 8 ()

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EEFAFIREELER 4. Holding Subsidiaries and Associates
RABNIERFRARIREGERGINE The following is a detailed list of the holding subsidiaries and
ST associates of the Company:
ACEL EMEx wESE HREA FERH RESH
Registered Consolidated
Company Name Capital Amount Ratio Main operations or not
1 EEREAREEHARAF W0ETARE  176ETARE 8% - #mTE z
Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain RMB2,000,000 RMB1,760,000 Retail of pharmaceutical Y
Company Limited
2 MEHE-ACIBRAR S0BET BEET 0% @ BETHESCIERN &
W £ENEE
Zibo Xinhua Sanhe Chemical & USD500,000 USD350,000 Research, production and sales Y
Industrial Limited pharmaceutical & Chemical
3 HEMEBRERARERAA 008TARE  180BTLARE 0% - BEIRR &
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design Institute  RMB2,000,000  RMB1,800,000 Pharmaceutical project design Y
4 BNFERRAZERRAA BOETARY  36ETARE 60% EnTE &
Dezhou Xinhua Taikang Pharm RMB600,000 RMB360,000 Retail of pharmaceutical Y
Company Limited
5 REMERBEABRAF WETARE 47.70BTARE 83%  #m%TE z
Dongying Xinhua Pharmacy Company Limited  RMB900,000 RMB477,000 Retail of pharmaceutical Y
6 AUHERBEARAF ETARE 1650BTARM 5%  E#m%TE z
Weifang Xinhua Pharmacy Company Limited ~ RMB300,000 RMB165,000 Retail of pharmaceutical Y
7 WRFERE BN ERAA 100ERT T08ET 70% BeBERHRTREE 2
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical 1,000,000 Euro 700,000 Euro Retail of pharmaceutical Y
(European) GmbH
8 MERBHE-ANRREARRELA B00E T 300EBETT 50% EE HERRZRHE &
Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua Perrigo USDE,000,000 USD3,000,000 Making & sale of lbuprofen materials N
Pharmaceutical Company Limited
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1 55
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4. PERFLTIRESELE » 4.

Holding Subsidiaries and Associates

(continued)

1. I EREEEHARAR (RE “
DEEsmEREEGR AT + 2003
F12AER)KIA1999F7H * A
AARMURFEREEEEGRET
ARHRPEMEE  RaEMERAA
R¥1008 7T - 200249 A A A
BREE B200BTARKE - NAF
B EHEEEESRETATN
F% 4 b 151 9 Bl 5 88%F112% °

2. B E =M T AR QRKILIR 2
20024107 + A7 A] L B AR H A
BEERAEM - bR =BT
BHERARERBEEEE  FMER
ABS0BET  HWESHRELG S
BIA70% ~ 25% ~ 5% °

*3. ST E B BN BT A PR A IR LR *3
200249 3A + AN AR EEE
BEBARETIRARLRBEMARE
HAMERB200EBTARE  LEE
77 B L B > B 590% F110% ©

*4, EINHERREAEEARARK LR 4
20014 8A + AR A MZER T E]
SEIEEE A S EEH AR AR MLE
ENEREXERARARTLEH
#AMERAEOETARYE -
B & T RIELL D19 Bl A60%F140% ©

*5. REHMERBEEFRRAKMLR *5
20024 3A + AR T MR F A E]
SR E R EEHARARRE
MEGRBEAEERETARERD
BHE - EMEARBIOBTAR
B B E T L1 5 B A53% A
47%

6. M EKREEARARKSZR 6
2002127 - BARAMERF A
AR RSB @ A R A AR
REEREARATARHEMAR
AMEARIOETARE  HESH
F& 4 b 151 5 Bl B 55%F145% ©

R ERER D BR AR

156 ) —z2=z=4

Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain Company Limited was registered on July,
1999, the registered capital is contributed by the Company and
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd, which hold 88% and
12% of the registered capital, respectively. The original registered capital
is RMB 1,000K. On September, 2002, the registered capital is increased
to RMB2,000K.

Zibo Xinhua Sanhe Chemical & Industrial Company Limited was set up
on October, 2002 by the Company, Japan Kyowa Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd and Beijing Santian Chemical Tech. Co., Ltd., which hold 70%,
25% and 5% of the registered capital, respectively. The original
registered capital is USD500K.

Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design Institute Co., Ltd was set up on
March, 2002 by the Company and Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Group Co., Ltd., which hold 90% and 10% of the registered capital,
respectively. The original registered capital is RMB2,000K.

Dezhou Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited was set up on August,
2001 by Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd. - one of the subsidiaries
of the Company and Shandong Dezhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which
hold 60% and 40% of the registered capital, respectively. The original
registered capital is RMBB0OK.

Dongying Xinhua Pharmacy Company Limited was set up on March,
2002 by Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Co., Ltd. - one of the subsidiaries of
the Company and Dongying Lanjing Tech.Co., Ltd., which hold 53%
and 47% of the registered capital, respectively. The original registered
capital is RMB90OK.

Weifang Xinhua Pharmacy Company Limited was set up on March, 2002
by Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Co., Ltd. - one of the subsidiaries of the
Company and Shandong Kangda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which hold
55% and 45% of the registered capital, respectively. The original
registered capital is RMB300K.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(R iFRb 5B it BHE INAA RIE T L A &)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)

(RFEFE S ERHR)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

4. Holding Subsidiaries and Associates

(continued)

*7

*8

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (European) GmbH, a new subsidiary
of the Company was added in the consolidation of the Company in this
fiscal year, which was established on 25 Nov. 2003. It was jointed
invested by the Company and Mr. LIPENG from Germany. The registered
capital was Euro1 million. The Company holds 70% of the equity and
Mr. LIPENG holds 30%. By the end of 31 Dec. 20083, the Company had
invested Euro 500,000, and the foreign investor had invested Euro
150,000. The Company was registered in Hamburg, Germany. Euro
was the recording currency.

Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited was
established between the Company and American Perrigo International
Corporation on 11 Sept. 20083. The registered capital was USD6 million.
Both parties hold 50% of the total equity. As at 31 Dec. 2003, the two
parties had both invested USD3 million. This joint venture was registered
in the High-tech Industrial Development Zone in Zibo, Shandong
Province. The recording currency was RMB.

5. Monetary Fund

2003.12.31 2002.12.31
e Cash 46 42
IRITF N 1 Bank deposits*1 413,940 503,425
A Total 413,986 503,467
1, RITERPRBREPRE - 1 Bank deposits include:
(1) L& 831 501,471,985.05 (1) current deposit of US$1,471,985.05;
e
2) T 7E Bi1F #4,300,000.00 2) time deposit of US$4,300,000;
el
3) BT 3023,686.318H o (3) a deposit of HK$23,686.31.
2. i ANEAFRR - 9 BIHR2003F 128

B1HARBITAMHTISEERTE
ARB KRB - Hip : ETEX
8.2767 » S HE[E %K 1.0657 °

2

These foreign currency deposits are translated into RMB at the rates of
exchange quoted by The People's Bank of China on 31 December
2003, namely, US$1 to RMB8.2767 and HK$1 to RMB1.0657.
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

6. MEHKE 6. Short-term investments
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
BHH ltems RERE B {5 4 0 RELHE HEEB
Provision for Provision for
Amount write-down Amount write-down
RERE Equity investments 1,174 — — —
He RERE Where: Stock investment * 1,174 - — —
HipKE Other investments 30,004 — — —
G Total 31,178 — — —
* x5 1% & /£2003F 11 A108 A4.3 * Stock investment refers to 272,940 A shares issued by China Yangtze
T/EBRERERIENRMNERA Power Company Limited on 10 Nov. 2003, which was acquired by the
Al EREITHAR I ZE272,0400% - Company in RMB4.3 per share. This investment would be locked for
BHEBR Mz ARETE6MAA - six months as regulated.
B ERMANT Detailed list of other investments:
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
&R RESE BREEF FRRARE  FRKE RESE HERE LLRABH  FBYE
Provision Provision
for Time of for Time of
ltem Amount write-down  investment Income Amount  write-down  investment Income
BEBEEZRES Increasing value of the
Boshi Fund 10,000 — 2003.8.31

ENNEES Boshi premium fund 20,004

2003.8.31

At Total 30,004 -

WEHERERGERAA
158 ) —zz==28
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(R FFERR 5 H it B & SNAN R TF T /3 8 ()

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EkRE 7. Notes Receivable
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
AR EE Trade acceptance 0 2,000
RITHENIESR Bank acceptance 40,951 11,256
CE Total 40,951 13,256
1) W EERARBREL FFRIERER 1) The balance of notes receivable at year-end increases significantly from
K EZ2RER2003FEFHEARD that of the previous year, mainly because the customers settled
RIEEERE  REHMA TRITEARL payments for goods using the bank bills of acceptance in 2003.
BELE A -
2) W EEA R E B A2004F 4 A A 2) The maturity date of notes receivable will be after April 2004. There
% o IR - BRIR A e 2 o are no mortgaged, discounted or overdue bills.
FE M AR =% 8. Accounts Receivable
FEER A BRER AT AT The aging analysis for accounting receivable is as follows:
LE 6l BRER it ZHRER
Provision for Provision for
2003.12.31 Ratio bad debts 2002.12.31 Ratio bad debts
—FH A Within 1 year 243,464 88.43% 1,217 233,336 87.90% 1,167
—EZ Between 1 & 2 years 15,375 5.58% 3,075 17,691 6.67% 3,307
“E=%F  Between 2 &3 years 12,817 4.66% 7,690 14,327 5.40% 7,992
ZFF  Over3 Years 3,676 1.33% 3,676 100 0.03% 100
A Total 275,332 100% 15,658 265,454 100% 12,566
1) U BR R EA R &R AR R R KA T4 B AL 1) The balance of account receivables due from the top five debts is
S EEH T 558,032F oT 0 (hEUER RMB58,032,000, making up of 21.08% of the total balance on 31 Dec.,
RERFRLL 1 521.08% © 2008.
2) AFEFIRBAD RIS TR PH3 2) The balance of accounts receivable aged over 3 years of
F A REUWBR 10,680 F IT © RMB10,680,000 has been written-off according to the Company's
accounting policy.
3) R AR BERERSFEAAGF5 3) There was no account receivables due from shareholders who hold 5%
% R SA £ TRIRAERR D FU AR R BRI AY R or more of the Company's voting capital.
o
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

9.

160

9. Other Receivables
3 1t 78 Ut 7%

;4] RRER £t ol ERER

Provision for Provision for

2003.12.31 Rate bad debts 2002.12.31 Ratio bad debts

—F LA Within year 63,016 59.67% 28 83,219 69.87% 41

—EZ Between 1 and 2 years 21,671 20.52% 379 33,156 27.84% 436

“Z=% Between 2 and 3 years 20,262 19.19% 283 93 0.08% 208

=FLE  Over3years 663 0.62% 663 2,642 2.21% 828

At Total 105,612 100% 1,353 119,110 100% 1,513
1) HihER KRB ERIFARQ A 1) RMB6,821,000 out of other receivables at the end of the period is owned

46.89% M0 IR R AT E L E XA
6,821F 7T R MisE42 - [BAEE S
BERRZS] -

Hih MR BRER ARG E
&5 A77,062T 7T - HEM
JEW R ERFELL B BT72.97% ©

HAh UGB R SR TR B T R
PR - BRI RBEERESS
HE - ZERERREREE -

MEEELE SN
—ET=5%54

by Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. that holds 46.89%
of the Company's shares. This is discussed in Note 42 'Related-party
Relationship and Transactions'.

2) The balance of other receivables due from top five debtors as at the
end of the period was RMB77,062,000 and accounted for 72.97% of
total other receivables.

3) The balance of other receivables include export tax refund receivable,
bank bill clearing securiting deposit, etc.. No provision for bad debts
had been accrued for this balance,as they are collectable when due.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(R FFERR 5 H it B & SNAN R TF T /3 8 ()
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

FHR 10. Accounts Prepaid
EE 6 1
2003.12.31 Ratio 2002.12.31 Ratio
—F A Within 1 year 3,637 87.49% 3,062 89.20%
—&_ Between 1 and 2 years 258 6.21% 71 2.26%
—E=F Between 2 and 3 years 7 0.17% 3 0.10%
=LA E Over 3 years 255 6.13% 266 8.44%
&5t Total 4,157 100% 3,402 100%
1) BREe— F A E R RIMTEMR IR E 1) Accounts prepaid overdue one year that are not recovered are mainly
BREKREENMEE - payments for materials to be settled.
2) TER R RBBPERFRAA 2) There are no prepaid accounts due from shareholders who hold 5% or
5% R PA EFORER DRI IR R B ) more of the Company's voting capital.
R -
78 11. Inventories
B R KEER
Provision for Provision for
2003.12.31 write down 2002.12.31 write down
R Raw materials 31,170 - 26,718 —
EEM Work-in-process 81,794 - 76,872 —
EXSH Finished products 121,842 2,385 102,081 2,464
EFEm Goods in stock 6,424 - 5,603 —
BEZER Low-valued consumable 10,162 - 8,116 —
BEREDE Special materials for Government 1,531 — 1,708 —
=5 Total 252,923 2,385 221,008 2,464
FEMRAEFREXm2IN - EARIEB T Inventories at the end of the period are not impaired except for finished products.

FEKRERBR -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

RAAKE

12. Long-term Investments
*HEm EHED

Increased Decreased

2002.12.31 for the year for the year 2003.12.31
RERERE Long-term equity investment 55,277 24,831 — 80,108
RAGEREE Long-term debt investment 76 — — 76
At Total 55,353 24,831 — 80,184
B X Impairment provided — — — —
REREHE Net value of
long-term investments 55,353 24,831 — 80,184
SRS Long-term equity investments:
B8 %
AU ] AH Rt LY S Lp]
HREATLH HYEHR WALH SR BEEE BAEER O WARE O WMORH MM
% of
registered
The capital in Amount Current Accumulated
period of invested initially equity equity Closing Closing  Opening
Name of invested Company investment company  invested adjustment adjustment balance impairment impairment
AAEFERELRA &4
Tiantong Securities Company Limited Long-term 1.23% 30,000 - - 30,000 - -
REERBAR &4
Pacific Insurance Company Limited ~ Long-term 0.25% 7,000 - - 7,000 — —
IWRERHERNBRAT R
Shandong Huanzhong Pharm. Long-term 6% 1,500 - - 1,500 - -
Company Limited
SR BENEREBRAH 50%
Jinrui Sifang Pharm & Technology 50 years 6% 3,200 - - 3,200 - -
Investment Co.
RIERT R
Communication Bank Long-term 13,577 — — 13,577 — —
hEEBHE-ANBRE
AREERA RE
Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited  Long-term 50% 24,831 - - 24,831 — —
Ait
Total 80,108 — — 80,108 — —

R ERER D BR AR
“ESESC-FEH
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FEEBR S HEHEINAARE T T RER)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’000)
(RFEFE S ERHR)
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

B E & & 13. Fixed Assets
FEREEYM BEREHE EWRE ETESE EH
Building &  Machinery & Transportation Electronic
structures equipment equipment Apparatus Total
BRE Opening cost 291,057 758,048 22,431 13,663 1,085,199
m: REED Add: Increases for the year 89,763 179,187 1,771 6,663 277,384
Eb ABIREA  Including: Construction-in-
progress transferred in 85,122 156,562 1,217 414 243,315
B RERD Less: Decreases for the year 136 9,107 677 67 9,987
HREE Closing cost 380,684 928,128 23,525 20,259 1,352,596
BZiinE Opening Accumulated depreciation 163,151 397,780 11,264 12,962 585,157
M AREE Add: Increases for the year 11,533 58,089 5,469 2,374 77,465
B RERD Less: Decrease for the year 136 8,545 487 67 9,235
MRZiIE Closing Accumulated depreciation 174,548 447,324 16,246 15,269 653,387
BFE Net value at 31 December 2002 127,906 360,268 11,167 701 500,042
HRFE Net value at 31 December 2003 206,136 480,804 7,279 4,990 699,209
1) LEHERENEEREA20,288 1) The original cost of the let out building is RMB20,288,000.
Fixe
2) BElEEEMRBREDR - R 2) There are no impaired fixed assets at year-end and no provision for
[ER=i- impairment therefore has been made.
3) BEEEEBRERER BRER - 3) There are no guaranteed or mortgaged fixed assets at year-end.
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1 63
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

14. EEIHE 14. Construction-in-progress
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
ARIEHE Construction projects 120,597 154,741
s Total 120,597 154,741
st H WA Checklist of construction projects
BABE Hx Wit
FMRE  FHRA REE At TIBBE ReXF IEBRE IREE % LFRMH
Accumulated Fixed assets Estimated
Opening increase transferred Other Closing Source  Project Project time of
balance for the year in  decreases  balance offund  budget progress completion
1 hBeE BR
Composite building 8,625 3,450 12,075 - —  Self-owned 10,000 100% 2003.12
2 FEENERIR 5548
Caffeine project 59,065 109,252 160,000 - 8,307 Raised 160,000 100% 2003.12
3 ZRIR R
Sanan project 21,599 (669) 20,930 - —  Self-owned 20,000 100% 2008.12
4 ESERE BR
Dormitory huilding 7,845 2,217 10,062 - —  Self-owned 10,000 100% 2003.12
5 AEMTMPEEIR R
TMP expansion project 2,818 7,560 10,378 - —  Self-owned 9,500 100% 2008.12
6 HEFERERIXE
Xinhua (West) Int'l Industrial Zone 15,137 — - 8,094 6,543
7 FEREEARIZE
Xinhua (East) Int'l Industrial Zone 9,045 414 - - 9,459
8 103EEMASEE BR
Expansion of louprofen production - 9,629 8,000 - 1,629 Self-owned 9,500 100% 2008.12
9 MEEHHE BR
Aspirin improvement - 7,941 7,000 - 941 Self-owned 9,000 100% 2008.12
10 BEHER R
Qingdao Office - 2,210 2,200 - 10 Self-owned 2,800 100% 2003.12
11 stEGMPEE BE4%
Injection GMP improvement - 22,278 - - 22,278 Raised 80,000 40% 2004.6
12 FIRSKERIIE R
New Chemical Area sewage
discharge project - 13,149 - - 13,149 Self-owned 20,000 85% 2004.5
18 REEERR BR
Troche expansion project - 4,91 - - 4,921 Self-owned 30,000 5% 2004.9
1% Efp BB
Other 30,617 35,413 12,670 - 53,360  Self-owned
A3
Total 154,741 217,765 243315 8,594 120,597
1) ERIRARERZEER  TFEE 1) No specially-borrowed fund is used in construction-in-progress and
EFEBIBR there are no items to be capitalized.
2) EREIRARERERR - BELRET 2) There is no impaired construction-in-progress at year-end and no
R EZER - provision for impairment is thus made.

WEHERERGERAA
164 ) —zz=z25



15.

16.

ERHRREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(R FFERR 5 H it B & SNAN R TF T /3 8 ()
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EEEE 15. Intangible Assets
EEERE 1HERE BEERE E kR &t
Building Land Software  Non-patented
use rights use rights use right technology Total

Rin &% Cost 612 76,589 1,240 5,000 83,441
HORE Cost on 1 January 2003 529 67,100 702 — 68,331
HHIESE 5 Accumulative amortized

amount on

1 January 2003 83 9,489 165 — 9,737
AEE Increase for the year — — 372 5,000 5,372
REEH Amortization for the year 14 1,650 301 780 2,745
IR 2Rt R Accumulative amortized

amount on

31 December, 2003 97 11,139 467 780 12,483
AHE Amount transferred

out for the year 515 — — — 515
R Cost on

31 December 2003 — 65,450 773 4,220 70,443
FB2EeER Remaining amortization

period 42 3 5

BVAERREREBREE - R AR
BEME -

There is no impaired intangible assets at year-end and no provision for impairment
is thus made.

AR 16. Short-term Loans
FFE
2003.12.31 2002.12.31 Annual rate
ERIER Guaranteed loans — 10,000 5.85%
= A ER Credit loans 174,156 130,000 21% - 4.779%
&% Total 174,156 140,000

EIHREENEHMER -

The Company does not have mature loans unpaid.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

==
17. BRE 17. Notes Payable
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
[EE SRS Trade notes payable 301 4,800
RITHENIESR Bankers' notes payable 91,899 2,000
= Total 92,200 6,800
I I
1) ENEEHRBEREIEREA 1) Balance of notes payable at period-end has increased significantly from
FERARADNABZNERFRLH that of the previous year, mainly because the Company settles payments
RTHRITEGEZELT - for goods using the bank acceptance.
2) S EHREIHH A2004F3H15H - 2) The maturity date is from 15 March 2004 to 21 June 2004.
2004F6H218 °
3) ER ER RSB ERE AR RS% 3) There are not any amounts in notes payable that are owed by
T BA B R AHE IR 1 B AR BR BERL Y 3K shareholders who hold 5% or more of the Company's voting capital.
I8 o
18. FEfTIER 18. Accounts Payable
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
JE S BRR Accounts payable 145,347 110,078
1) ERRFERBERFVEREA 1) The closing balance of accounts payable has increased significantly
FZRERARRA2003F E 5 215 from the beginning balance, mainly because of increased purchase of
mmE s FEERBEEM - inventories resulted from an increase in production and sale in 2003.
2) PR BIERT2,938F 2) Accounts payable over three years are RMB2,938,000, most of which
TLEZRUBIFEREBHER - are unsettled payments for goods of previous years.
3) FER R RBERERNFARE 3) There are not any amounts in accounts payable that are owed by
5% K LA £ FIRBER D B FR BB Az ) shareholders who hold 5% or more of the Company's voting capital.
FRIE ©
19. TR 19. Deposits from customers
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
FEUBR X Advances from customers 8,541 6,794
1) BREHRIB1 F RV IEUER 382,096 T 7T 1) Advances from customers over one year is RMB2,096,000, mostly are
FTERHMALENTERK ° unsettled penny amounts.
2) FEWR R R AR B ERIFAAF] 2) There are not any amounts in advances from customers that are owed
5% R IA EFRBER D HIRER BALH by shareholders who hold 5% or more of the Company's voting capital.
FRIA ©

WEHERERGERAA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(R FFERR 5 H it B & SNAN R TF T /3 8 ()

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

FE £ B 1 20. Dividends Payable
BEREE Rt RE
Name of Shareholders 2003.12.31 2002.12.31 Reason for delay
ENiks
State shares — —
HEEAR
Publicly-held legal-person shares — —
i R AR
Negotiable Stock A-share — —
3 IR HAR
Negotiable Stock H-share — —
Hith
Other 5,795 5,136 Normal delay
a5t
Total 5,795 5,136
EXReE 21. Taxes Payable
ERARE
2003.12.31 2002.12.31 Taxed ratio
& PTiS T Income tax (3,576) (5,764) 15%
JERIE(ETY VAT (17,289) (13,459)
JER &R Operating tax 113 100 3% - 5%
JE A R Y Urban maintenance & construction tax 213 (950) 7%
JEX#HEEM I  Educational fee 91 (166) 3%
FEZBAFTEH  Individual income tax 209 (1,664)
ER T AT Land-use tax 415 (309)
JE X 55 EE Tt Property tax 299 182 1.2%
= Total (19,525) (22,030)
H fth FE 1 3% 22. Other Payables
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
E AT 3R Other payables 37,941 32,499
1) EMENRERBER ERKREIRS 1) There are not any unpaid other payables of large amount aged over 3
FHRFEREAN E - years.
2) ot FE S BHA R SRR R B R AR A 2) There are not any amounts in other payables that are owed by
5% K LA £ FIRBER D B AR SR BB Az ) shareholders who hold 5% or more of the Company's voting capital.
A -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

23. HiREH 23. Accrued Expenses
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
EEMS Directors' emoluments 5,000 2,000
EiTE Audit fees 1,200 1,000
HOERE Export freight & insurance 1,103 —
s Total 7,303 3,000
24, —FRIPHRMAR 24. Long-term Liabilities due within One Year
FEFE
2003.12.31 2002.12.31 Annual rate
ERE Guaranteed borrowing — 200,000 3.51-4.05%
= Total — 200,000
25. REAfER 25. Long-term Borrowings
& 1 FEFE
Terms of Loan 2003.12.31 2002.12.31 Annual rate
ER1E K Guaranteed borrowing 200,000 — 3.51%
& &f Total 200,000 —
IR R I R AR E * The guaranty is provided by Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group
ERFHRHER - Co., Ltd.
26. PHEBRERER 26. Minority Shareholders' Equity
PHBRERE DL
Name of minority shareholders Ratio 2003.12.31 2002.12.31
IWRRERER E/“ Shandong Kangda Pharamceutical Company Limited 45% 77 135
LERRBRER Dongying Lanjing Technology Development Company Limited ~ 47% 458 427
WRENRREEE] EQ Al Shandong Dezhou Talkang Pharamceutical Company Limited ~ 40% 256 234
WERNERESEFREMLA Shandong Xinhua Pharamceutical Group Company Limited 2% 354 429
WRHEBEEEEREMLA Shandong Xinhua Pharamceutical Group Company Limited ~ 10% 202 210
BAAMER K 2t Nippon Kyowa Pharmaceutical Corporation 25% 1,035 1,034
FR=BEIRMGAE Beijing Santian Chemical Technology Company Limited 5% 207 207
LIPENG LIPENG 30% 1,379 —
At Total 3,968 2,676

WEHERERGERAA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(R FFERR 5 H it B & SNAN R TF T /3 8 ()

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

B & 27. Share Capital
2003.12.31 2002.12.31
—. REWmmBEG : . Unlisted shares
1. BRAKRG 1. Founder's shares: 214,440 214,440
Hep : BERR GERARS) Including: State shares (unlisted) 214,440 214,440
BAEANFE KRG Legal persons shares — —
2. BEEARGERARD) 2. Fund raising legal-person shares
(unlisted) 16,720 16,720
3. ERfL 3. Transferred and allotted shares — —
4. NEEIIK Employee shares - —
5 BERREM . Preferred stock and others — —
REMRARNDER Sub-Total 231,160 231,160
—. BLmrarm Il. Listed shares
1. BAEWAREL @R (ABR) 1. Domestically listed RMB A shares 76,153 76,153
2. BALTHINER 2. Domestically listed foreign invested shares — —
3. BN ETRISNE R (HRR) 3. Overseas listed foreign invested H shares 150,000 150,000
4. Efb 4. Others — —
B EmR@iRmnast Sub-total 226,153 226,153
= ke Il Total stock 457,313 457,313
BFELHE 28. Capital Surplus
EHEM FTHRDY
Increases  Decreases
2002.12.31 for the period for the period 2003.12.31
EESMEME  Upward revaluation of assets 60,910 — — 60,910
PR3 #174%E  Premium on stock 496,851 — — 496,851
BEXBRE Receipt of donation 1,158 — — 1,158
&3t Total 558,919 — — 558,919
BRROE 29. Surplus Reserves
Increases  Decreases
2002.12.31 for the period for the period 2003.12.31
VAT B AES® Statutory surplus reserve 64,129 4,208 — 68,337
{EE &% % Discretionary surplus reserve 60,589 4,208 — 64,797
N Public welfare fund 24,188 2,103 — 26,291
=X Total 148,906 10,519 — 159,425
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

FRASE

30.

170

30. Profit Distribution

2003.12.31 2002.12.31
b ZAIbE Profit after tax 42,076 68,764
o BRRIR o B F A Add: Undistributed profit at
beginning of the year 232,785 217,839
Al BL B FE Profit available for the year 274,861 286,603
o IREUEE BRI ATES (10%) Less: Appropriation of
statutory surplus reserve (10%) 4,208 6,904
REIVEE R E (5%) Appropriation of statutory
Public welfare fund (5%) 2,103 3,452
Al 5 FR A oK 2 B A1) Undistributed profit available for the year 268,550 276,246
B REBIEEESBATES (10%) Less: Appropriation of discretionary
surplus reserve (10%) 4,208 6,876
A ) 53 B Distribution of dividends 27,439 36,585
AR 2K 9 Be 71 Undistributed profit at the end of the year* 236,903 232,785

BEBNARSEF HNFAREEFR
fi5£3.16 °

TERE=FZA-+—BARAEN
EEEEENRSHBBEERE
LA2002F 12 A31 HAARR AR A& -

EitFRIRERSLHO0.067T ()
MRESECTESR - ZORFEE 72003
FOAIRRBIRRERRERRAESB -

REAARFNEESSE NS H
BBN_TT=FEFEMNEH @Eiﬁ%v
FEREI0%MEERBATES 5%
E’ﬂ'&ﬁ?&@%mo%ﬂﬁﬁ%‘@ﬁéﬁﬁﬁé
% A4ARRR457,312,830 AE
E ﬁ%‘@%ﬁx%iﬁi%&iﬁAqﬂiﬂﬁ/\
R¥0.0470 (BH) « RFBMBLER
RRERREB -

R ERER D BR AR
“ESESC-FEH

-

) Adjustments to year-end undistributed profit is set out at Note 3.16.

2) The sixth meeting of the fourth Board was held on 21 March 2003
resolved that dividend of RMB0.06 per share (including tax) is to be
distributed based on the total share capital on 31, Dec., 2002. This
resolution has been approved at the shareholders' meeting on 9 June,
2008.

3) According to profit distribution proposal passed in the 10th Meeting of
the fourth Board's, RMBO0.04 per share based on the total share capital
of 457,312,830 shares would be available to all the stockholders, after
appropriation of 10% statutory surplus reserves, 5% of public welfare
fund and 10% discretionary surplus reserves. This resolution has yet to
be approved at the shareholders' meeting.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(R FFERR 5 H it B & SNAN R TF T /3 8 ()

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

SEHRERITEES 31. Foreign Currency Statement Translation
Difference
2003.12.31 2002 .12.31
INEERRITE E TR Foreign-currency statement
translation difference 744 —
744 —
* BARRRMEIN AR LR ES * This is derived from the overseas subsidiary of the Company —
gz (BUN) AR A AR K IEZ2003F 12 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (European) GmbH's statements
AB1BEXRFERARBHZSE - translated into RMB on the exchange rate prevailing on 31 Dec., 2003.
FERBWA » BF 32. Revenues & Costs from Main Operations
EEEXEBEA ETEXBRET
Revenues Costs

2003.1-12 2002.1-12 2003.1-12 2002.1-12

JR K} 2 Bulk pharmaceuticals 783,758 749,548 628,397 566,361
Erd O Including: Export sales 484,199 472,310 389,755 356,418
27| Preparations 503,433 391,997 364,305 269,688
{t TE @ Kk E A Chemicals & other products 41,280 32,005 34,911 22,580
B Total 1,328,471 1,173,550 1,027,613 858,629
ANBRIAREFHERALTEA150,431F Sales to the top five customers are RMB150,431,000, which account for 11.32%
JC E2EREE R AR11.32% of total sales.
FERBRMRM DN 33. Taxes and Surcharges for Main Operations
HEER g 474
Basis of computation Ratio 2003.1-12 2002.1-12
R JE R E
City Construction Tax VAT payables 7% 5,630 2,167
B BH N JE R SERE R
Education fees VAT payable 3% 2,413 929
R BREFBUIA
Operating tax Design fee 5% 185 93
BEr Total 8,228 3,189
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

34. HtixHKFHE 34 . Profit on Other Operations
2003.1-12 2002.1-12
A X iR WA Fif b
Revenue Expenditure Profit  Revenue Expenditure Profit
HEMK Sales of materials 31,305 31,277 28 47,572 46,316 1,256
HEKEA Sales of water, power and gas 12,171 12,150 21 15,621 15,144 477
FfisEzg Transfer of technology 50 28 22 477 188 289
e Leasing 2,026 - 2,026 2,056 113 1,043
CHI Total 45,552 43,455 2,097 65,726 61,761 3,965
35. MBEH 35. Financial Expenses
2003.1-12 2002.1-12
FEEMA Interest expenses 14,018 13,804
RITFEE Banking charge 1,304 1,356
o A B A Less: Interest income 5,952 12,317
[ H 18 5k Exchange loss 1,192 626
A Less: Exchange income — 14
EAh Others (277) (964)
= Total 10,285 2,491
AEEMHBEAL LFEREBERAN  £2R Financial expenses for the year are significantly higher than that of the previous
A AN HNE TE BB RUR D R SN 78 BRTE 3R F) year, mainly because of a decrease in interest income resulted from a decrease
AR i 6 F S U T FEFTEL © in foreign currency time deposits and a decline in interest rate of foreign currency
time deposits.
36. {EWKE 36. Investment Income
2003.1-12 2002.1-12
fe - 5ERA)DF Profit from associates and joint ventures 781 816
&5 Total 781 816
& & Wazs oy U B N7 FE E KR | o There is no significant limit on the return of investment income.

WEHERERGERAA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(R iFRb 5B it BHE INAA RIE T L A &)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

AL A 37. Income for Subsidies
2003.1-12 2002.1-12
BEEM W) VAT exempted for agriculture-supported
REIEER products (Amine sulfate) 340 —
&5t Total 340 —
ERIMNEA 38. Non-operating Income
2003.1-12 2002.1-12
BE&EESFTER R Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 2,077 2,186
EIES PN Income from penalties 105 53
HAth, Others 637 439
&5t Total 2,819 2,678
BERIIZH 39. Non-operating Expenses
2003.1-12 2002.1-12
BEEEBETEEEEBX Loss on disposal of fixed assets — 432
e~ E1E0 - BIZEHES B ST Overdue payment, fines, fees for
excessive sewage discharge, etc. 2,757 3,035
B Donations 178 —
HAth, Others 1,870 3,695
A

Total 4,805 7,162

XHHEMRESETEHE 40. Cash Paid Relating to Other Operating

REH & Activities

2003.1-12
E=IRE Travel expenses 9,917
FHFE HBAE EFTE Annual listing fee, audit fee and Board's fee 4,028
HaE Sewage discharge fees 10,021
¥BHEE Entertainment expenses 1,499
BE - MBREE Advertising and marketing expenses 47,290
BE Freight 11,295
Hth Others 44,972
=1 Total 129,022
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)

(RIZH B & 5 E R R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

41. BOFIEHERIRE

FE M AR =%

FEMRFRH BRER D ATIA T

41. Notes to the Financial Statements of the
Parent Company

41.1

Accounts Receivable

The aging analysis for accounts receivable is as follows:

4] IR 4 s o EEREE
Ratio  Bad debts Ratio  Bad debts
2003.12.31 provided 2002.12.31 provided
—FHR Within 1 year 243,414  88.42% 1,217 233,336 87.90% 1,167
—EZ Between 1 and 2 years 15,375 5.59% 3,075 17,691 6.66% 3,307
“EZE Between 2 and 3 years 12,817 4.66% 7,690 14,327 5.40% 7,992
=FEHE Over 3 years 3,676 1.33% 3,676 100 0.04% 100
&t Total 275,282 100% 15,658 265,454  100% 12,566
1) UG AR SR EA AR #R B AR R R 1) The balance of accounts receivable due from the top five debtors is
ARENESBRTA RMB58,032,000, making up of 21.08% of total accounts receivable.
58,032F 7T - {5 EULRR X
BREEL B A21.08% °
2) NEFIRBARRF NS 2) The balance of accounts receivable over 3 years of RMB10,680,000
KRS F LA U ER K has been written-off according to the Company’s accounting policy.
10,680F 7T °
3) FEWEBR AR R S 3) There are no account receivables due from shareholders who hold 5%

RRAEE% RIA ERARER
DEBRERLHORIK ©

WEHERERGERAA
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41.

BAFIEHEBRIE

41.2

H i FE 0 3%

H o & UK BR ik 0 AT 40

41.

ERHRREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(RS FEHEINAARE T TR ER)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(IRIR T B & 51 E R A5 2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Notes to the Financial Statements of the
Parent Company (continued)

41.2 Other Receivables

The aging analysis for other receivables is as follows:

T -

el IR 4 0 54l ZRER

Bad debts Bad debts

2003.12.31 Ratio provided 2002.12.31 Ratio provided

—FHR Within 1 year 64,128  60.10% 28 81,789  69.50% 41

—EC Between 1 and 2 years 21,654  20.29% 379 33,157  28.17% 436

—E=F Between 2 and 3 years 20,262  18.99% 283 93  0.08% 208

=ENE Over 3 years 663 0.62% 663 2,642  2.25% 828

A% Total 106,707 100% 1,353 117,681 100% 1,513
1) Hph R R EIR S EER A 1) RMB6,821,000 out of other receivables at end of the year is owed by

R 7] 46.89% M 17 K AR
MESBEXRKAE6,821T
JL °

Hh FEUCGR B AR BA TR R R K
MABEMNEBEBTA
77,062F 7T ¢ Ak E il FE U
FRERFAT2.22% ©

HIR R BIE T M O
BB ERRTERAER
BLEWE - RESBEET
ISR

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited, which holds
46.89% of the Company's voting capital.

2) The balance of other receivables due from the top five debtors for the
year is RMB77,062,000, making up of 72.22% of other receivables.

3) The banlance of other receivables includes export tax refund receivable,
bank bill clearing security deposit receivable, etc. No provision for bad
debts is made on these items.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

41. BAFEHEBRERIE » 41. Notes to the Financial Statements of the
Parent Company (continued)

41.3 RHEEE 41.3 Long-term Investments

XH8m THRD
Increased  Decreases

for the for the
2002.12.31 period petiod 2003.12.31
REIRERZE  Long-term equity investment 63,209 28,801 — 92,010
RHEEEE  Long-term debt investment 76 — — 76
&t Subtotal 63,285 28,801 — 92,086
WEEE Provision for impairment — — — —
REREFME  Net value of long-term investments 63,285 28,801 — 92,086
T RIMBRERY - Include: Long-term equity investment:
HRE
DR e E3 ] LS B
BRRLTER REMR RELH HEEE HEWE RHEGRE NXRE  HEER  REER
% of
register
capital in Initial Current Accumulated Closing Opening
Investment  invested amount equity equity Closing Impairment Impairment
Name of invested companies period company invested adjustments adjustments balance provided provided
1 ARBSBEREAAR =4
Tiantong Securities Company Limited ~ Long-term 1.23% 30,000 30,000 -
2 KFFRRARA R
Pacific Insurance Company Limited Long-term 0.25% 7,000 7,000 -
3 WRRHHERHERAT RH
Shandong Huanzhong Pharm.
Company Limited Long-term 6% 1,500 1,500 —
4 SHEEHEEREREBERAA 50%F
Jinrui Sifang Pharm. &
Technolog Investment Company Limited 50 years 6% 3,200 3,200 —
5 R@RT =54
Communication Bank Long-term 13,677 13,677 —
6 TEEBNE-ANGREERALLT RH
Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited. Long-term 50% 24,831 24,831 —
7 URFEREEMERAR =5
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Europe) GmbH Long-term 70% 4,597 4,597 —
8 MENERZEEHERAT &5
Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Long-term 88% 1,760 2,593 -
Company Limited
9 HENEBERAHARAT RH
Xinhua Pharm. Design Institute Long-term 90% 1,800 1,815 —
Company Limited
10 BENE=MELIFRAA RH
Zibo Xinhua Sanhe Chemical & Long-term 70% 2,897 2,897 —
Industrial Company Limited
AffTotal 91,162 (626) 848 92,010 — —

WEHERERGERAA
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41.

BAFIEHEBRIE 41.

41.4

41.5

ERHRREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(R FFERR 5 H it B & SNAN R TF T /3 8 ()
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Notes to the Financial Statements of the
Parent Company (continued)

EERBWA - BF 41.4 Revenues & Costs from Main Operations
EEEXEBEA ETEXEBRET
Revenue Cost

2003.1-12 2002.1-12  2003.1-12 2002.1-12
[ R} 2 Bulk pharmaceuticals 783,758 749,548 628,397 566,361
Hep: 0 Including: Export sales 484,199 472,310 389,755 356,418
27 Preparations 503,433 391,997 364,305 269,688
ftTERNEHM  Chemicals and others 21,341 15,714 21,776 10,974
B Total 1,308,532 1,157,259 1,014,478 847,023

ARBRABEPHERANBER

Sales to the top five customers are RMB150,431,000, amounting to

150,431F 7L ' 2 HBHEE WA 11.50% of total sales.
11.50% °
BrEWRS Investment Income
2003.1-12 2002.1-12
N kNS R Profit from associates and joint ventures 781 816
BERFRENZ Earnings from invested company's profit after tax
WL BLDFHE adjusted under the equity method

at end of period (626) 367

A&t Total 155 1,183
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

42. BT REBERERXS 42. Related Party Relationship and
Transactions
42.1. RBKHRE 42.1 Related Party Relationship
4211 TR IR B B R A B 77 42.1.1 Related parties under a control relationship
LRER 3t TERY HBENTFmME  BERE EERRA
Relation
Name of related Place of with the Legal
parties registration Main operations Company Nature representative
LRFERERE IR EED RERBEIRNR BHERE -  ARAZERR HEBE Bimg
BRELRF REBRR—H% B BEREEHE
1485 (BHEE2005-12-31) : BEEE

CIRBEE  BRERNRE  HE
tIER (BiErka) HE : %
ELOXK(BEERERLR)

Shandong Xinhua No. 14, East 1st Road,  Investment in the design of construction  Parent company ~ State-owned ~ He Duanshi
Pharmaceutical Zhangdian Dist., projects, property development and food  of the Company
Group Company Zibo, Shandong and beverage; production and sale of
Limited Province. ointment preparation witha shelf life

extended to 12 Dec., 2005; Packaging &
decoration; Chemical industry machinery
equipment; sale of chemical industry
products (other than hazardous chemical
articles); operation of import & export
businesses (As permitted by the
Qualification Certificate).

MEERNEXEE IWEREEED HRELELEOERE REBRAR BEEE Bine
BEREARTA REE AR
109%%
Xinhua Lukang No. 109, XinCun Investment in manufacturers of The ultimate Wholly state  He Duanshi
Pharmaceutical West Road, pharmaceuticals. holding company  -owned
Group Company Zhangdian Dist., Zibo,
Limited Shandong Province.
4212 FHEESBEMBEE S M 42.1.2. Registered capital and its changes of related parties
BAREE under a control relationship
REAER FHEm FHED
Increase for ~ Decrease for
Name of the related parties 2002.12.31 the period the period 2003.12.31
WRHFEREEEERELLA
Shadong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited 298,500 — — 298,500

MERNEXREEREMALT
Xinhua Lukang Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited 495,490 - — 495,490

WEHERERGERAA
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42.

MEBEATRERRERS &)

421. BABFRE (&)

42.1.3 TFAEHE B B R A BB 0T RO PR

B HREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(R AL 5 B it & INAN R BT T 5 8 )
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)

(RFEFE S ERHR)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Related Party Relationship and

Transactions (continued)

42.1 Related Party Relationship (continued)

42.1.3 Share holdings and their changes of related parties under a

IR REZ (L control relationship
LRt BREN RRILA
Name of the related parties Amount of shares Proportion
2003.12.31 2002.12.31 2003.12.31 2002.12.31
WRHEBREEEAREE LT
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited 214,440 214,440 46.89% 46.89%

42.1.4 NFEZHIRE R RERE T B
(E2=1

2141 BRRBIRZ—& a2

42.1.4 Nature of related parties under no control relationships

42,141 Arelated party as under the same parent company with

HY R RS 7 the Company
AhAEE BARGERSAE FERE HELNTRBZRANE
Shares Related
Name of related Held by parent Transactions
parties company  Main businesses with the Company
1 URHFEIBRHBRAA EESHIEIRY  &af - BS86x WA HEPHIRZE -
R ERRCIZE BR BER Bﬁ%ﬁﬂ C o RERWH
BERE  mER (Tet2rkhea)  HER
TE&RE M BEEM EFEM-
BRRERSTEE 25 RIS BYRE
t2E%E
Shandong Xinhua Industry 16,340  Production and sale of chemical raw materials, Sale of power and waste

& Trade Company Limited

corrosion inhibitor, apparatus & instruments,
paints, construction & anticorrosive materials;
combined fertilizer, amine sulfate

(excluding hazardous chemical articles);

sale of general merchandises, hardware, steel,

medical equipment, electronic products,

electrical equipment, and maintenance of vehicles;

food and beverage; technical services;
waste disposal; chemical cleaning, etc.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
Annual Report 2003

materials, and purchase
of raw materials

179



ERHRREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

42. BT REBERERS 2 42. Related Party Relationship and
Transactions (continued)

42.1. FABHRRE (&) 42.1 Related Party Relationship (continued)

W5 EE BARRERG EERHB BELFRBRANE
Shares Related

Name of related Held by parent Transactions

parties company  Main businesses with the Company

2 URHNEBELE ERNY - HRBE - BREN EXBBRERS -

HEEARBER EFER - GEMH HEBN

BEEAR EMERSNHE RITEH  RES

Zibo All-purpose Service 19,600  Kindergarten education; beverage & food Purchase of services and

Company Limited of trading; medical apparatus & instruments; sale of power

Shandong Xinhua flowers & nursery-grown plant; sanitary

Pharmaceutical Group materials; sale, technique consultancy

and development of gardening machinery.

3 WRHMEBRE HEHERETRE (CIRHERERRE BECIRH - RERWR
BT R 2BHH %

BREMAT
Zichuan Chemical 2,500 Production and sale of medical midway Purchase of
Company Limited of articles and chemical raw materials, and chemical raw materials;
Shandong Xinhua operation of equipment fittings and provision of
Pharmaceutical Group metal materials. technical services

4 m%%iﬁﬁ FE TR B REBALH BERMH

BHmEE REMARNS

ﬁ@a1Aﬂ
Zibo Acid Manufacturing 7,735 Production and sale of sulphoacid, Purchase of raw
Company Limited of aluminum sulfate, sulfur oxide, materials
Shandong Xinhua reducer, washing powder, etc.

Pharmaceutical Group

5 IWEEEHE EERETENE  ((BRAMEREDRERE HEBN
REFRAF
Shandong US$1,725,000  Production and operation of Western medicing Sale of power
Zibo Xincat materials medicine and midway articles.
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

WEHERERGERAA
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42. RABMFRERERZS @

42.1.

E“+$E§“IE(/:E

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(RS FEHEINAARE T TR ER)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(RFEFE S ERHR)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

42. Related Party Relationship and

Transactions (continued)

MBARME (&) 42.1 Related Party Relationship (continued)
Lokt BARRERSR FERE HBELFRBZAAE
Shares Related
Name of related Held by parent Transactions
parties company  Main businesses with the Company
WEREBHE — g HEBEMZIER HEPN  RESBHK
EFHEARAT]
Shandong Zibo 46,256  Production and sale of cephal- Sale of power and
Xinhua-Chemferm product series. provision of services
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
WRHMERE BEEEHR  OF BREERT HEPN  RE
EEEBRE KA BEMH
REERAEMAD
Zibo Packing & Decoration 12,591 Packaging & decoration products, printing, Sale of power and
Company Limited of Shandong packaging & decoration design, and furniture. purchase of packaging
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group materials
2142 RREINEEDRE 42.1.4.2 Associates
WS &8 e NSEEE ) ) FERH HELFRABZ AR
Name of the related party Share held Main Operations Related
by the Company Transactions
PENEHE BN EREERETAT NOBEL  HEWEHES BEERER

Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical - US$3,000,000
Company Limited.

Production and sale of
Ibuprofen

Sale of enamel
glass-lined equipment
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

42. BT REBERERS 2 42. Related Party Relationship and
Transactions (continued)

42.2 RBES 42.2 Related Transactions:
4221 HEBM 42.2.1 Sale of merchandise
2003 2002
WEE &8 &8 8 i
Name of the related parties Amount Amount Remark
He o IWRHEIBRHAERAA HEBHNR=FE
Include: Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade Company Limited 23,464 14,315 Sale of power and
waste materials
RS B ERERR AT HEBHN
Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. 990 1,697 Sales of power
RS BHE—SFHEFRAAF HEBN
Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm Pharmaceutical Company Limited 4,290 5,366 Sales of power
RN EREEBEHEORREEREAAT HEEN
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Packaging Company Limited 1,135 1,293 Sales of power
IWRHEREEBEBEEREEREEAA HEEN
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Comprehensive Service Company Limited 890 1,952 Sales of power
mEEENE-—ANSRERREELT HERWBRE
Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited. 2,362 — Sales of enamel
glass-lined equipment
At
Total 33,131 24,523
RARAESEH S IHEREEEER=EET The Company sells glass-lined equipment and waste materials to related parties
HGEBRETRE  HEDNRBBEETE at the market price and sells power at an agreed-upon price.

o
& o
Ess
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42. RABMFRERERZS @ 42.

42.2

42.2.2

42.2.3

ERHRREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(RS FEHEINAARE T TR ER)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(IRIR T B & 51 E R A5 2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Related Party Relationship and
Transactions (continued)

AWz S (&)
42.2 Related Transactions: (continued)
RBWE 42.2.2 Purchase of materials
2003 2002

)bk &# T8
Name of related parties Amount Amount
WRFEIERNDBR AT
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade Company Limited 28,958 32,043
IWERFEREEEE) It TAREEAT
Zichuan Chemical Company Limited of

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group 10,802 6,754
IR EREEEEEARREEREERTR
Zibo Packaging & Decoration Company Limited of

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group 23,047 17,368
WS ENE - 5B FREERDA
Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm Pharmaceutical Company Limited — 12,415
At — —
Total 62,807 68,580

ARABHRBEB S RBMERTSE
RAEITHRE -

REEL

The Company purchases goods from related parties at the market price.

42.2.3. Provision of services

2003 2002

EBARE &H G|
Name of related parties Amount Amount
IR EBEEEY) (L TAREEAR
Zichuan Company Limited of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group — 24
WEREEHE -5 ZHERRDA
Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm

Pharmaceutical Company Limited 2,310 1,314
At - -
Total 2,310 1,338

KRB AR B RSB IR R E

REITHEE -

The Company provides service to related parties at an agreed-upon
price.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

42. BT REBERERS 2 42. Related Party Relationship and
Transactions (continued)

422 HMWEH (&) 42.2 Related Transactions: (continued)
42.2.4 BZE 42.2.4 Acquisition of services
2003 2002
)bkt &8 T
Name of the related party Amount Amount
IR EREEEEEERERBEEREERR
Shandong Xinhua Zibo Comprehensive Service Company Limited 6,900 12,156
Bt
Total 6,900 12,156
* AARRSEH T ZEZ L * The Company acquires service from related parties at an
BIHEEIRETREE - agreed-upon price.
4225 EEMLHE 42.2.5. Leasing Assets
2003 2002
o)t XHKE X 5 &8 Gkt
Name of the related party Nature of Time of Amount Amount
deal deal
IWER S E R E R SR A A FEHME 2F
Shandong Zibo XinCat House leasing Full year 1,355 1,420
Pharmaceutical Company Limited
ast
Total 1,355 1,420
AARM T R A ERETISER The Company lets out assets to related parties at the market price.

EITHER -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(R AL 5 B it & INAN R BT T 5 8 )

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIFF E & 5 ER w2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

42. BT REBERERZS 2 42. Related Party Relationship and

Transactions (continued)
422 BBRES (&)

42.2 Related Transactions: (continued)

42.2.6 HXER 42.2.6 Guaranty secured

2003F9H25H » R A A8 The Company signed an export bargainor credit contract
REELARTREELOE with China Import & Export Bank on 25 Sept. 2003. The
HEEAR  ARETER contracted amount was RMB250,000,000 and the term
25,000& 7T + & R ER 24 of contract was 24 months. Shandong Xinhua
@A - IURHEBEEEAR Pharmaceutical Group has provided joint guarantee
RETARIRARRIE L obligation on debt under the above borrowing contract
EBERERTHERRMET & for the Company. By the end of 31 Dec. 2003, the
wEERE - BIZ2003%F12 Company has received RMB200,000,000 out of the
A318 ' ARRIEWMB%ZE borrowing contract.

[[20,0008 JTE K °

4227 AT ESER 42.2.7 Fund transactions between related parties
WS &8 ARNRFRGEES WESRETARREES
Name of the related party Fund provided to the Fund provided to the
related party public company by the
related party
BER 3] BER B
Additions Balance Additions Balance

IWRHEBEEBERAE AT
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical

Group Company Limited 4,254 6,821 — —
&
Total 4,254 6,821 — —
* BT ASTRARER * Fund transactions between related parties are free of charge
K BRIEEEEBE. and no repayment date has been settled.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(TR S B EINAA BT T B E W)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(RIZH E & 5T ER R

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

42. RABMFRERERZS @ 42.

423 FBBHERRE

43. REER 43.

43.1

186

Transactions (continued)

Related Party Relationship and

42.3 Related Party Current Account Balances

WE a8 HEER

Name of the related party Item 2003.12.31 2002.12.31

IWRIEREEEEBETAR Hto e

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited Other receivables 6,821 6,868

IWRFELIERNBRAR H R

Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade Company Limited Other receivables 27,179 24,409

RS B E - 2R EBR AR H R

Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm Pharmaceutical Company Limited Other receivables 149 296

RSB EREBRAR Hto e

Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical Company Limited Other receivables 4,790 4,708

IR EREEE B ORREEREAAT Hto e

Zibo Packing & Decoration Company Limited of Shandong Xinhua Other receivables (6,988) (7,284)
Pharmaceutical Group

IR EREE BN BRAREEREEAT Hto e

Zibo All-purpose Service Company Limited of Shandong Xinhua Other receivables 2,001 21
Pharmaceutical Group

HEHE-BFHRYEEREAAA HtofEsh

Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited. Other receivables 269 —

WRFEREE R ITBREALA H R

Zichuan Chemical Company Limited of Shandong Xinhua Other receivables (81) (1,371)

Pharmaceutical Group

HEXHEZESRAXZH 43.1

E1E2003F12A31H - AR
HWAEBFITERZIANOEKX
BRBRERZH#H£F12,920F
T ARBERMT

Commitments

Large-sum agreed-upon contracting expenditures

On 31 Dec. 2003, the Company has entered into large-
sum contracting expenditures that has not been paid of
RMB 12,920 as follows:

HER®E eR&d xft&®@
Item Contract price Unpaid amount
0 &k

Caffeine 11,550 11,550
EBES

Dormitory 1,370 1,370
& &t

Total 12,920 12,920

R ERER D BR AR
“ESESC-FEH



43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

AEEER©® 43.

432 BEFEFMAGEEES - #152003
F128318  ARFEH M E KA
HEIF -

HEEER 44.

HZE2003F12A318 * AAREEREN
ERAKEEE -

HEEARKRB&ER 45.

BHZE2003F 128318 » AR AEFF
BHEXNAEEIE -

Htt =R 46.

HZE2003F12A31H » KA AR EEH
BEHEMEBEAESA -

HmrEEH 47.

ERPBEZEES(RRABTESFNAT
SEBBERBRUFNFIFEERS
EMEBRKENFTERRBE)NER
KA FI20034F E 2 E#H M hEFGE
BoFEERS X RERKENT

ERHRREE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(RS FEHEINAARE T TR ER)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(IRIR T B & 51 E R A5 2

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Commitments (continued)

43.2 The Company has no other capital commitments signed
except for the above-mentioned on 31 December 2003.

Contingencies

The Company has no significant contingencies to be disclosed
on 31 December 2003.

Post Balance Sheet Date Events

The Company has no significant subsequent events to be
disclosed on 31 December 2003.

Other Events

The Company has no significant other events to be disclosed
on 31 December 2003.

Supplementary Information

According to Rule 9 on Information Disclosure and Presentation
by Company for Issuing Securities to the Public - Calculation
and Disclosure of Rate of Return on Equity and Earnings per
Share, issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission, the
Company's rate of return on equity and earnings per share
calculated by fully diluted and weighed average methods in 2003
are as follows:

wEHTA BEERRE 5 B &2 (7T/BR)
Profit for the reporting period Return of return EPS
on equity (%) (RMB)
2EEER miEFY 2EHEE miEFY
Fully Weighted Fully Weighted
diluted average diluted average
FEEBIE Profit from main operations 20.71% 20.82% 0.6399 0.6399
BENE Operating profit 3.63% 3.65% 0.1120 0.1120
bEV e Profit profit 2.98% 2.99% 0.0920 0.0920
MBI FIEIB2E%E ) Net profit after deductions of
Ve extraordinary gains or loss 3.08% 3.09% 0.0951 0.0951
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